
 
 
 

 

 
Agenda 

 
 
 
 
 

Delegated Decisions of the Board 
Member, City Development 
 
 
 

Date: Monday 8 August 2011 

Time: 5.00 pm 

Place: Town Hall, Oxford 

 
For any further information please contact:  

William Reed, Democratic Services Manager 

Telephone: 01865 252230 

Email: wreed@oxford.gov.uk 

 
 
 



 

 

HOW TO OBTAIN AGENDA 

 

In order to reduce the use of resources, our carbon footprint and our costs we 
will no longer produce paper copies of agenda over and above our minimum 
internal and Council member requirement. Paper copies may be looked at in 
our Town Hall and Ramsay House (St. Ebbe's Street) reception areas and at 
public libraries. 

 

A copy of the agenda may be:- 

- Viewed on our website - www.oxford.gov.uk/councilmeetings 

- Downloaded from our website 

- Subscribed to electronically by registering online at 
www.oxford.gov.uk/ebulletins 

- Sent to you in hard copy form upon payment of an annual subscription. 
 

 

 
 

Delegated Decisions of the Board Member, City 
Development 
 
 
 

Board Member Portfolio 
  
 
Councillor Colin Cook City Development 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

AGENDA 
 

PART ONE 
PUBLIC BUSINESS 

 
 
  Pages 

1 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 

 

 Guidance on personal and personal prejudicial interests is attached to these 
agenda pages. 

 

 

2 PUBLIC ADDRESSES 
 

 

 Members of the public may, if the Board Member agrees, ask a question of 
the Board Member on any item for decision on this agenda (other than on the 
minutes).  The full text of any question must be notified to the Head of Law 
and Governance by no later than 9.30 am two clear working days before the 
meeting.  Questions by the public will be taken as read and, at the Board 
Member’s discretion, responded to either orally or in writing at the meeting.  
No supplementary question or questioning will be permitted. 
 
The total time permitted for this item will be 15 minutes. 

 
 

 

3 COUNCILLOR ADDRESSES 
 

 

 City Councillors may, at the Board Member’s discretion, ask a question or 
address the Board Member on an item for decision on the agenda (other than 
on the minutes).  The full text of any question and the nature of any address 
must be notified to the Head of Law and Governance by no later than 9.30 
am two clear working days before the meeting.  Questions by councillors will 
be taken as read and, at the Board Member’s discretion, responded to either 
orally or in writing at the meeting.  No supplementary question or questioning 
will be permitted.  If an address is made, the Board member will either 
respond or have regard to the points raised in reaching her or his decision.  If 
the address is by the Chair of a Scrutiny Committee or her or his nominee 
then the Board member will be required to say as part of their decision 
whether they accept the Scrutiny recommendations made. 

 
 

 

4 CONFIRMATION OF ARTICLE 4 DIRECTION ON HOUSES IN 
MULTIPLE OCCUPATION 
 

1 - 8 

 Lead Member: Councillor Cook  

 Report of the Head of City Development  

 This report addresses comments received on the consultation upon the 
making of an Article 4 Direction controlling the change of use of properties 
from dwelling house to house in multiple occupation.  The Article 4 Direction 

 



 

will remove permitted development rights for such change of use. 
 
The report recommends the confirmation of the Article 4 Direction.  

 

5 CAR PARKS ADJACENT TO PARKS - CHARGING, PERMITS AND 
CONTROL OF USE 
 

9 - 28 

 Lead Member: Councillor Cook  

 Report of the Head of Direct Services  

 This report presents and responds to comments received to the advertised 
proposals to introduce parking charges and car parks controls at car parks 
adjacent to City Parks. 

 

 

6 MATTERS EXEMPT FROM PUBLICATION 
 

 

 If the Board member wishes to exclude the press and the public from the 
meeting during consideration of any of the items on the exempt from 
publication part of the agenda, it will be necessary for the Board member to 
pass a resolution in accordance with the provisions of Paragraph 21(1)(b) of 
the Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Access to Information) 
(England) Regulations 2000 on the grounds that their presence could involve 
the likely disclosure of exempt information as described in specific 
paragraphs of Schedule I2A of the Local Government Act 1972. 
  
The Board member may maintain the exemption if and so long as, in all the 
circumstances of the case, the public interest in maintaining the exemption 
outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information. 

 
 

 



 

 

DECLARING INTERESTS 
 
What is a personal interest? 
 
You have a personal interest in a matter if that matter affects the well-being or financial 
position of you, your relatives or people with whom you have a close personal association 
more than it would affect the majority of other people in the ward(s) to which the matter 
relates. 
 
A personal interest can affect you, your relatives or people with whom you have a close 
personal association positively or negatively.  If you or they would stand to lose by the 
decision, you should also declare it. 
 
You also have a personal interest in a matter if it relates to any interests, which you must 
register. 
 
What do I need to do if I have a personal interest? 
 
You must declare it when you get to the item on the agenda headed “Declarations of 
Interest” or as soon as it becomes apparent to you. You may still speak and vote unless it is 
a prejudicial interest. 
 
If a matter affects a body to which you have been appointed by the authority, or a body 
exercising functions of a public nature, you only need declare the interest if you are going to 
speak on the matter. 
 
What is a prejudicial interest? 
 
You have a prejudicial interest in a matter if; 
 
a)  a member of the public, who knows the relevant facts, would reasonably think your 

personal interest is so significant that it is likely to prejudice your judgment of the 
public interest; and 

 
b) the matter affects your financial interests or relates to a licensing or regulatory 

matter; and 
 
c) the interest does not fall within one of the exempt categories at paragraph 10(2)(c) of 

the Code of Conduct. 
 
What do I need to do if I have a prejudicial interest? 
 
If you have a prejudicial interest you must withdraw from the meeting.  However, under 
paragraph 12(2) of the Code of Conduct, if members of the public are allowed to make 
representations, give evidence or answer questions about that matter, you may also make 
representations as if you were a member of the public.  However, you must withdraw from 
the meeting once you have made your representations and before any debate starts. 



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 
To:   Delegated Decisions of the Board Member, City Development 
 
Date: 8 August 2011    
 
Report of:   Head of City Development  

 
Title of Report:   Confirmation of Article 4 Direction on Houses in 

Multiple Occupation (HMOs). 
 

 

 
Summary and Recommendations 

 
Purpose of report: To consider the comments in response to the consultation 

exercise following the making of the delayed effect Article 
4 Direction on HMOs in February 2011 and to confirm the 
Direction. 

 
Key decision?  Yes 
 
Executive Lead Members: Councillor Colin Cook, Board Member for City 
Development  
   
 
Report Approved by:   
 
Finance:    Paul Jemetta, Finance  
 
Legal:    Emma Griffiths, Legal Services  
 
Policy Framework: Meeting housing needs, Strong active communities 
Legislative Framework: Town and Country Planning Act and Use Class and 
General Development Orders 
 

Recommendation(s):     To approve the confirmation of the Article 4 
Direction controlling the change of use of C3 dwelling houses to C4 Houses in 
Multiple Occupation (HMOs). 

 

 
                                    
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Agenda Item 4

1



1.0 Background 
 
1.1 On the 8 December 2010 the City Executive Board agreed the 
introduction of a city-wide Article 4 Direction (A4D) with a 12-month delayed 
effect, removing the Permitted Development rights (PD) for change of use 
from C3 dwelling house to C4 HMOs. It was agreed that the A4D would be 
served giving one year’s notice, in order to avoid the possibility of 
compensation claims, in accordance with the regulations.  
 
1.2 The A4D was made on the 24 February 2011 under delegated powers. It 
comes into force on the 24 February 2012. This report deals with the 
requirement for confirmation of this city-wide A4D.  
 
2.0 Aims of the Article 4 Direction 
 
2.1 De-facto blanket planning permission is granted nationally for some forms 
of development by the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted 
Development) Order 1995 (as amended) under Permitted Development rights 
(PD). An A4D allows planning authorities to remove specific permitted 
development rights attached to a property/ies. The effect of this is to bring 
those types of development specified in the Direction back under the auspices 
of planning control. In this case it means that planning permission will be 
required to change the use of a C3 Dwelling house to a C4 HMO. This does 
not necessarily mean that proposals for the change of use will be refused, but 
allows the planning authority the chance to assess the acceptability and harm 
of any such proposals, having regard to both national and local planning 
policies. 
 
3.0 Serving the Notice and consultation 
 
3.1 There are a number of statutory requirements as part of the process of 
serving a delayed A4D. These include: 
 

• A consultation period of at least 21 days.  

• Notice should be given:  
o By local advertisement  
o By site display at no fewer than two locations for a period of not 

less than six weeks.  
o To every owner/occupier – unless the number of 

owners/occupiers makes individual service impracticable.  
o With the County Council  

• Notify the Secretary of State  
 
3.2 The delayed effect A4D was advertised in the Oxford Times on 24 

February 2011. Notices were displayed at Ramsay House and the Town Hall 
notice boards and were also distributed to public notice boards across the 
City. Information was advertised on the front page of the Council’s website. 
Further details were available on both the planning and housing sections of 
the Council’s website. Interested parties, such as local landlords, letting 
agents and planning agents were informed by email. A press release was also 

2



circulated. As the A4D relates to all existing C3 dwellinghouses in the city it 
was not practicable to provide written notice to individual owners and 
occupiers. 
 
3.3 The Secretary of State was notified on the 24 February 2011. The County 
Council were also informed as required. 
 
3.4 Consultation took place between the 24 February 2011 and 18 March 
2011. Representations could be made in writing to Ramsay House or the 
“Have Your Say” section of the Council’s website. There were six responses, 
including from the National Landlords Association, the Residential Landlords 
Association and the Oxford Civic Society. 
 
4.0 Consultation comments 
 
4.1 Objections received 
Objections to the A4D were received from the Residential Landlord’s 
Association and the National Landlord’s Association, as well as two letters 
from local landlords and a couple of emails from local landlords requesting 
clarification and their comments can be grouped into six broad categories. 
They are summarised and each one is addressed in turn below. 
 
4.1.1 It will limit landlords’ flexibility and will restrict supply. 

• It will discourage landlords whose properties are of a quality that allow 
them to be let interchangeably between sharers and families. HMOs 
provide relatively inexpensive and flexible accommodation that is not 
replicated in the social sector.  

• Over time the measures will lead to increased rents.  
 
4.1.2 Officers’ response: 
Although the existing flexibility is helpful to landlords, it is anecdotally 
understood that only a limited proportion of properties change between the 
shared and family lettings market. This is likely to be because of existing 
demand, as well as the fact that HMOs yield higher rent returns than family 
dwelling houses. Furthermore, the introduction of additional HMO licensing 
controls in Oxford means that landlords incurring the additional licensing fees 
are likely to commit to one sector or the other. The A4D will not prevent the 
creation of more HMOs, it merely brings the change of use back within the 
scope of planning control, aiming towards a balanced housing stock locally 
and also balanced communities. The reduction in flexibility is not a good 
reason in itself not to proceed with the recommended confirmation. 
 
4.2.1 The difference between C3 dwellinghouses and C4 HMOs is not 
‘material’. 

• The effects of small HMOs on the local infrastructure is similar to that 
of a family home.  

• The new controls will be difficult to enforce and expensive to 
administer.  

3



 
4.2.2 Officers’ response: 
The Town and Country Planning (Use Classes) (Amendment) (England) 
Order 2010 introduced the distinction between dwellinghouses and HMOs. As 
such there is a distinct and material legal difference between the two use 
classes and the change of use is indeed a material one, albeit it is currently 
permitted development. Any property used as a C4 HMO (up to six tenants) 
before the 24th February 2012 has/will have de-facto planning permission for a 
C4 HMO use. Enforcement will only become an issue when a dwellinghouse 
is converted into an HMO after thereafter. The Council is in the process of 
identifying the HMO stock in the city through its licensing function and this 
information will be used by planning enforcement. At present planning 
applications resulting from withdrawal of permitted development rights through 
A4Ds are free of charge and not subject to an application fee. However the 
government is currently reviewing planning fees and it is anticipated that it will 
allow the introduction of fees for such applications. In that case the planning 
application process will be cost neutral. 
 
4.3.1 The measure will make it difficult to satisfy future increased need 
for shared accommodation. 

• National and local demographic trends point to a greater need for 
shared/HMO accommodation. There is a trend towards younger people 
renting rather than buying (79% of all renters are aged 20-29).  

• Changes to the Local Housing Allowance will create a greater demand 
for shared housing, especially with the age limit likely to be increased 
from 25 to 35.  

 
4.3.2 Officers’ response: 
The provision of good quality housing that is appropriate to household needs 
and circumstances is a key corporate aim for Oxford City Council. Our 
adopted Core Strategy takes into account future demographic changes and 
the policies that feed out from it and the emerging Sites and Housing Policies 
Development Plan Document will inform planning decisions on a case by case 
basis. In addition future planning policies will seek to respond to future 
changes in Government legislation. There is a capacity issue in Oxford in 
terms of housing need and the housing stock available across housing types 
and tenures, including shared accommodation. The adopted and emerging 
housing related policies seek to ensure the provision of a balanced housing 
stock in response to need, as well as the creation of balanced and sustainable 
communities. The A4D will bring the creation of new C4 HMOs within the 
scope of planning control, which already covers the creation of new and 
changes to and between all the other types of housing. It will therefore 
normalise the situation across the entire housing stock. This will enable the 
assessment of planning applications against our relevant adopted and 
emerging policies. The existing HMO policy and the published preferred 
option, currently out to consultation, would allow new HMOs in areas where 
there is adequate capacity, while they would seek to restrict new HMOs in 
areas of high concentration, in order to avert the proliferation of associated 
problems. As such the A4D is an important tool in implementing the Council’s 
policies and meeting our corporate priorities.  

4



 
4.4.1 The measures will impact on residential property prices 

• Property values will be distorted. Those properties with ‘implied HMO 
permission’ will be regarded as a premium investment. Conversely, 
values of C3 dwelling houses may reduce, especially in certain areas.  

 
4.4.2 Officers’ response: 
Demand for all types of housing in Oxford outstrips supply and house prices 
are significantly above the national average. As a result all types of properties 
have tended to maintain their value. Anecdotal evidence suggests that well 
maintained family homes are valued at a similar level or in excess of 
comparable HMO properties in their locality. Price discrepancies may occur 
with poorly maintained properties, which in the past may have been converted 
to an HMO with little or no improvement, but deemed too expensive to 
renovate for use as family accommodation. Nevertheless the effect of 
planning policy and planning proposals on land values is not usually a 
material consideration in the planning process. 
 
4.5.1 Alternative controls should be used to manage HMO’s 

• Accreditation and licensing plays a vital role in educating and improving 
the professionalism of the private rented sector and should be given 
time to work.  

• Anti-social behaviour can occur in relation to all types of tenure. Other 
powers are available to local authorities to control and manage these 
issues. Problems are caused by individuals not the houses themselves.  

 
4.5.2 Officers’ response: 
A distinction needs to be drawn between planning and licensing controls, 
which are not interlinked but run in support and in parallel with each other. 
The A4D will be using powers given by the government to help local 
authorities manage change in accordance with their Local Development 
Framework to ensure balanced communities and a balanced mix of housing 
types to cater for all needs in the city.  
 
4.6.1 Local planning policy implications 

• The Council will have to produce a fair and robust policy to meet the 
demand for shared accommodation. If housing supply is to be 
balanced, some communities may need to accept an increase in the 
number of HMOs in their locality.  

• The Article 4 Direction is a form of social engineering, designed to 
force out certain social groups on the false basis of balancing 
communities. Shared accommodation contributes to the vibrant nature 
of many areas and can contribute to local regeneration  

 
4.6.2 Officers response: 
The provision of good quality homes of appropriate sizes and tenure is one of 
the Council’s key corporate objectives. Housing is central to fulfilling the 
social, economic and environmental goals, which shape the community and 
create a sense of space and place. It is therefore logical and reasonable that 
a type of housing that represents in excess of 10% of the city’s housing stock 

5



needs to be brought within the remit of the planning process. Currently large 
HMOs, in excess of six tenants, require planning permission and are 
controlled by the retained Local Plan Policy HS15. Following the 
implementation of the A4D any proposals for new HMOs will be subject to the 
relevant retained Local Plan and Core Strategy policies, as well as, the 
Balance of Dwellings Supplementary Planning Document. New housing 
policies, including on HMOs, are also currently being developed as part of the 
Sites and Housing Preferred Options study, which forms part of the emerging 
Sites and Housing Development Plan Document. 
 
5.0 Support for confirming the Article 4 Direction 
 
Letters of support were received from Oxford Civic Society and one Divinity 
Road resident. 
 
5.1 In Oxford there is a need to manage the balance of dwellings and high 
concentrations of shared houses.  
 
5.3 Council should now develop firm policies to give guidance on the 
circumstances in which consent for change of use from C3 to C4 may or may 
not be given.  
 
5.4 Policies should take into account numbers of HMOs in particular areas, 
consideration of impact on local vehicle parking, provision for bicycle parking 
and rubbish bin storage on the premises. The Council should look at declaring 
areas of saturation and will consult with local residents through Area Forums 
and Residents’ Associations  
 
5.5 The Article 4 Direction is absolutely essential; the balance between HMOs 
and permanent residences in any area or street should not be more than 
20/80 and in some areas of East Oxford it is clearly the other way around. 
Only by introducing such controls it is possible to begin to regain some sense 
of community and neighbourliness to our areas  
 
5.6 Officers response:  
The comments of support are noted. In addition to existing housing and HMO 
policies in the retained Oxford Local Plan, the Core Strategy and the Balance 
of Dwellings Supplementary Planning Document, the Council published the 
Preferred Options Consultation Document to the Sites and Housing Policies 
Development Plan Document in June 2011. This includes a number of options 
in relation to HMO planning policies, including a preferred option, which seeks 
to set a 20% HMO concentration threshold in the vicinity of each application 
site, above which the creation of new HMOs are likely to be unacceptable.  
 
6.0 Financial Implications of confirming the Article 4 Direction 
 
6.1 Any resource and cost implications following the introduction of the new 
planning controls will be minimised as a result of the 12-month amnesty 
period. It is anticipated that any future costs would remain at manageable 
level. But this would depend primarily on the number of planning applications 

6



received for changes of use to C4 HMOs and whether the government will 
allow Councils to charge fees to enable cost recovery. Were the government 
to decide that such applications should remain free of charge and were a 
significant number of casework to arise, with the associated costs and 
pressure on resources to become unsustainable, then the Council can either 
consider to withdraw the Article 4 Direction controls, otherwise a budget bid 
would be necessary to cover the cost of such work.  
 
7.0 Climate change / environmental impact  
 
7.1 There are no material climate change / environmental impacts as a result 
of this report.  
 
8.0 Equalities impact  
 
8.1 Rented shared houses (C4 HMOs) are the cheapest and thus most 
affordable form of accommodation per tenant provided by the private sector. 
They are occupied by unrelated individuals, such as students, young 
professionals and migrant workers. They fulfil a need and demand in the 
market, however the standard of accommodation provided is often lower than 
would otherwise be acceptable in new development, while high 
concentrations of HMOs can have an adverse impact on local environment 
and communities. It is unclear at this stage how the changes to housing 
benefit as a result of the Comprehensive Spending Review may affect the 
demand for HMOs. There are no particular equalities impacts relating to this 
report.  
 
9.0 Conclusion and the way forward. 
 
9.1 It is considered that there is a need to introduce planning controls over the 
change of use of C3 dwellinghouses to C4 HMOs, to avoid the problems 
associated with high HMO concentrations and to enable balanced housing 
stock and communities in accordance with our adopted and emerging 
policies. It is therefore recommended to confirm the city-wide 12-month 
delayed-effect A4D in relation to HMOs under delegated powers.  
 
9.2 Subject to the Single Member approval the A4D will be confirmed and the 
following procedures will be followed: 
 

• Notice will be given:  
o By local advertisement  
o By site display at no fewer than two locations for a period of not 

less than six weeks.  

• The Secretary of State will be notified. 

• In addition the council will inform the County Council and the 
respondents to the consultation and also local landlords, letting and 
planning agents.  

7



 
Name and contact details of author:   Dan Clarkson / Niko Grigoropoulos 
dclarkson@oxford.gov.uk;  ngrigoropoulos@oxford.gov.uk 

  
 
Background Papers: 
 
- Consultation Responses 
- 2010 Changes to the Town and Country Planning (Use Classes) and (General 
Permitted Development) Orders  
- Replacement Appendix D to CLG Circular 9/95: General Development 
Consolidation Order 1995 (November 2010)  
- CLG Circular 08/2010 Changes to Planning Regulations for Dwellinghouses and 
Houses in Multiple Occupation 
- HMO report to CEB (December 2010)  
- Adopted Core Strategy (2011) 
- Oxford Local Plan 2001-2026 

- Balance of Dwellings Supplementary Planning Document 
- Preferred Options to the Sites and Housing Policies DPD (June 2011) 

8



 

 
 

                                                                                
 
To: Delegated decisions of the Board Member, City Development   
 
Date:  8 August 2011          

 
Report of: Head of Direct Services  
 
Title of Report: CAR PARKS ADJACENT TO PARKS – CHARGING, 
PERMITS AND CONTROL OF USE   
 

 
Summary and Recommendations 

 
Purpose of report:  For the Board Member of City Development with 
responsibility for Parking issues to carefully and fully consider the comments 
sent to the City Council as a result of both the informal and statutory 
consultation arising from proposals to charge for parking in areas adjacent to 
park and recreational land. 
          
Key decision? No  
 
Executive lead member: Councillor Colin Cook  
 
Policy Framework:  
Improve the local environment and quality of life 
Transform the Council by improving value for money  
 
 
Recommendation(s):  
 
Officer Recommendation is that the Parking in Parks charges agreed by 
Council as part of the budget process be implemented as soon as is 
reasonably practicable. 
 
The original proposed charge at Court Place Farm not be consulted on or 
pursued and Godstow Road be subject to consultation which will report back 
to Members if there are significant objections  
 

 
APPENDICES 
 
� Appendix 1 – Public notice inviting comments on the advertised 

proposals 
� Appendix 2 - Summary of comments 
� Appendix 3 - Comments 

 

 

Agenda Item 5

9



BACKGROUND 
 
1. A report was considered by the City Executive Board on 8th December 

2010 with a proposal to commence charging in several parking areas 
adjacent to parks. The decision was made to implement charging (subject 
to parking place Order consultation). 
 

2. This decision was referred to the Value and Performance Scrutiny 
Committee which met on 10th January 2011.  At this meeting the 
Committee concluded that the decision to charge (subject to consultation) 
should stand, but requested that Council officers carry out a consultation 
with the main user groups of the park areas. 

 
3.  On 21st February 2011 Council approved a capital bid of £92K to fund the 

implementation costs of the project which included pay machines, signage 
and associated civil works. As well as its revenue budget which assumes 
£48.5K additional  net income. 
 

4. A letter was sent to a variety of different user groups, organisations and 
associations.  The consultation period ended on 18th March 2011. 
 

5. A further report was considered by the Value and Performance Scrutiny 
Committee on 5th April 2011. This report detailed the results of the 
consultation that had taken place and made a number of 
recommendations in regard to the level of tariff that should be charged at 
each site and also details of any concessions that could be given to 
regular users.   It is these recommendations that have been included in the 
Draft Order and advertised for comment.  
 

6. A project plan was compiled with a target implementation date of 1st July.  
It was recognised that there was a 3 month lead time for the machinery, 
and this was ordered on 3rd March 2011.  It was later necessary to amend 
the implementation to that of 11th July 2011. 

 
7. Legal notices were placed in car parks on 16th June advising all users of 

the proposed terms of the parking place Order.  A period of 21 days was 
allowed to give members of the public time to comment on the proposals. 

 
BUDGET AND WORKS AT THE CAR PARKS 

 
8. The Council’s 2011/12 Budget indicated that revenue from this project 

would be available from 1st April 2011.  However, as the pay and display 
machines needed to be procured and the parking place Order written and 
the ability to proceed with the statutory Order processes was not possible 
until after the Scrutiny Committee meeting on 5th April 2011, revenue 
generation has been delayed.  Some preparatory civil engineering works 
have been carried out in the parking areas.  This included the design and 
commissioning (but not erecting) of signage, civils works, electrical works, 
and the installation of machine footings.  It was felt that the risk of having 
to remove machine bases and incurring minor expenditure for a project 

10



which might be determined not to go ahead was low, compared with the 
risk of having to further delay the project and thereby lose revenue if this 
work was carried out after final approval was made following the parking 
place Order consultation exercise. 

 
CURRENT POSITION  
 
9.  The public consultation period on the parking place Order closed on 7th 

July.  The public notice inviting comments is circulated as Appendix 1. The 
City Council received 36 letters/emails of comment in respect of the 
proposals These letters/comments are summarised in Appendix 2 and 
reproduced in full in Appendix 3. 
 

10.  Because of the high volume and the variety of comments made, the 
Parking Manager felt that this was a matter in which it was not appropriate 
for him to exercise his delegated powers to determine objections, and 
accordingly, , has referred this matter back to the Board Member for City 
Development  for determination. 
 

11.  There is an existing parking scheme in place at Hinksey Park, and Walton 
Well Road, whereby users are required to obtain a free vend timed ticket.  
The pay machines that were originally deployed in these areas were 
approximately 20 years old and these have now been upgraded to the 
latest models as part of this project.  They remain on free vend, but can be 
easily configured to accept payment if appropriate. 

 
12. Prior to the parking place Order being drafted it was identified that there 

were a number of issues which had come to light at Court Place Farm, 
which indicated that the original proposal to put in charging was no longer 
viable due to a development of a car park on the same site.  It was felt that 
the City Council car park would therefore only be used for overflow parking 
at peak periods, and as such revenue potential would be minimised to the 
point that this area would not obtain pay-back of capital costs within 3 
years.  

 
13. Originally the site at Godstow Road was considered by rejected as it was 

not thought that pay back would be obtained within 3 years.  The Parking 
Manager has checked this area’s usage on several occasions and now 
feels that the original estimate of usage may have been too low and that 
income is likely now to be sufficient so that payback is possible within the 
3 year period.  The anticipated income is broadly in line with the original 
anticipated income for Court Place Farm.  

 
 
   
 
 
 
 
 

11



 
 
 
 
 
 
THE PARKING PLACE ORDER CONSULTATION 
 
14. In summary the comments received, and officer responses, are these:- 
 

Car Park Number of 
Spaces ( 
Approximate
ly) 

Anticipat
ed 
Annual 
Income 

Summary of 
Comments Received 

Officer Reply 

Cutteslowe 
Park ( A40 
and 
Harbord 
Road  

220 £27K • Charging for 
parking will 
displace 
vehicles from 
the car parks 
and onto 
adjacent roads.  
This will 
detract from 
the amenities 
of those roads 
and cause 
congestion.  

•  Applicants will 
not be able to 
obtain 
concessionary 
permits to 
park. 

•  Concern that 
the cost will be 
prohibitive for 
regular users.  

• Further 
concerns that 
income will not 
be achieved as 
usage figures 
are estimated 
only. 

 

• Clubs consulted 
indicated that a 
concessionary rate of 
£20 a year would 
significantly reduce 
displacement 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

• Written and web 
application willl be 
acceptable. 

 
 
 

• £20 a year permit 
available for regular 
club users. £50 a year 
for all other users 

• A trial year will confirm 
income levels and 
new machines will 
provide early data. 

 
 

Alexandra 
Courts  

26 £4K • General 
concern from 
local residents 
who currently 
use this area to 

• The car park is for 
general public use and 
not to supplement on-
street residential 
parking, which is 

12



park in order to 
supplement on 
street parking 
provision.  

• Very 
favourable 
comments 
from Tennis 
Club members 
who have 
difficulty in 
finding parking 
spaces due to 
it being used 
by local 
residents 

administered by the 
County Council. 

 

Marsh 
Road  

55 £3.7K • General 
concern from 
residents that 
there is 
insufficient on 
street parking 
in that area 
and that the 
proposals will 
make the 
situation 
worse.  

•  Some 
residents 
currently use 
this parking 
area for 
overnight 
parking if they 
cannot get a 
parking place 
on street.  

• General 
disagreement 
regarding the 
proposal to 
issue permits 
to staff working 
at Cowley 
Marsh offices. 

•  Concern about 
the expense 
for club 
members. 

• The traffic authority 
(the County Council) 
will be asked to 
monitor on-street 
parking with a view, if 
necessary, to 
introducing parking 
controls.  

 

• The parking place 
Order makes provision 
for permits which can 
be purchased by 
regular users.  Local 
residents (on the basis 
that they are Parks 
users)will be permitted 
to apply for permits to 
park in the car park for 
overnight and 
weekend use at a cost 
of £50 per year.  

 

• Operational front line 
staff who come and go 
at hours when public 
transport is sparse or 
non-existent need to 
be able to park their 
cars. 

 

• Annual permits 
available for £20 

 

13



 
 
 
 

Hinksey 
Park  

43 £14K • Comment 
from 
regular 
user who 
feels that 
charges 
are fair. 

 

The proposed Order 
makes provision for 
regular users to 
purchase permits. 

 

Walton 
Well Road  

35 £5K • Concerns 
from local 
residents 
who feel 
that they 
are 
already 
paying the 
County 
Council 
for a 
resident 
permit, 
and 
should 
therefore 
be given 
free 
access to 
the City 
Council 
car park.   

• Many 
comments 
from 
allotment 
holders 
regarding 
maintena
nce and 
signage of 
the area, 
and the 
possibility 
of permits 
being 
issued 

•  The proposed 
Order makes 
provision for 
regular users to 
purchase 
permits.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

•  The Parking 
Manager has 
agreed that 
allotment holders 
will qualify for the 
permits at the 
reduced 
“affiliated club 
“rate of £20.  All 
other regular 
users e.g. dog 
walkers would 
qualify for a 
permit at the rate 
of £50 per 
annum.   

 
 

14



 
 
 
 

General 
Comments  

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Total 
£53.7K 
Net of 
Costs 
£48.5K 

• Concerns that 
the machine 
bases were 
installed and 
civils work 
carried out 
while the 
parking place 
Order was 
being 
advertised, 
which gave the 
impression that 
the outcome of 
the 
consultation 
had been 
decided before 
it started. 

• The risks of delaying 
the project further 
pending the results of 
the consultation were 
considerably higher 
than the risk of having 
to remove or undo 
work that was done 
during the consultation 
process.  This is 
addressed in 
paragraph 8 above. 

• The Council has 
purchased machines 
which can be used 
elsewhere if the 
schemes don’t go 
ahead. The cost of the 
works was small in the 
context of the income 
gain, but in hindsight it 
did sent out the wrong 
signal. 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
OPTIONS 

 
15.  There are several options open to the Board Member : 
 

• To proceed with the original proposals to implement charging at 
Cutteslowe Park (Harbord Road and A40), Alexandra Courts, Marsh 
Road, Walton Well Road and Hinksey Park with a review report back 
six months after introduction of the new arrangements.  If this option 
is chosen then it is anticipated that charging could commence on 1st 
September 2011  It should be noted that because of the delay in 
implementation the sum of £20K  cannot be recovered, which 
reduces income to £28K for the remainder of the financial year. 

 

15



• To proceed with the proposals without concessions, which would 
increase income over the budget by £10K, less the impact of delays. 

 

• To proceed with the original proposals and to include Godstow Road 
within the scheme and therefore promote a parking place variation 
Order in order to introduce charges at Godstow Road. It is unlikely 
that there will be additional income generated this financial year as 
there will a need to promote a Traffic Order to include this area.  The 
anticipated income in future years is estimated to be approximately 
£5K ( similar to that original anticipated for Court Place Farm ) 

 

• To report to Council that the scheme will not be implemented and a 
supplementary budget be allocated to Direct Services to replace the 
lost income. 

 
 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 

16.   A capital sum of £92K was approved by Full Council.  The costs of the 
machines have been around £60K. The cost to manufacture signage is 
given as £5K.  There has been around £5K expenditure on other civils 
works associated with the project to date. 
 

17.  The income expectation for the whole project for the full year was some 
£58.5K, with an allowance of £10K given for any concessions that might 
be necessary. The income budget expectation is therefore £48.5K With 
the awareness of the fact that the project may not commence until July 
2011 this income was phased over 9 months, with some of it being 
weighted for the summer months. The anticipated income for the summer 
months was therefore £10K for July and £10K for August and this income 
will not be achieved if the project is delayed.   If the project is cancelled 
then the entire revenue stream will not be available.   

 
 
18. If for any reason the new machines are not to be used in the Parks areas, 

then there is an opportunity for them to be deployed in off- street parking 
areas given that some of the machines in these areas are approximately 
20 years old and nearing the end of their life expectancy.  The remedial 
work to remove the pedestals and “make good” would be at minimal cost 
(No more than 2K) 

 
PROCEDURAL ISSUES 

 
19.  If the Board Member decides that the proposals be implemented as 

advertised, officers will go ahead and finalise / seal the Order, publish a 
made Order notice, (that provides for a six week procedural challenge), 
and introduce equipment and signage at the car parks. 

 
20. If the Board Member decides to not pursue these proposals, officers will 

strip out the Parks charges and controls from the Order and implement the 

16



other advertised elements (which are Sunday charging at the Barns Road 
car park and season ticket arrangements at the Headington car parks). 

 
21. If the Board Member decides that the proposals need to be modified then 

a procedure needs to be followed which involves consultation with those 
likely to be affected by the modifications.  This could lead to a delay in 
implementation of about two months. 
 

 

Name and contact details of author:- 
 
Name Andrew Bradfield-Barnes 
Job title Parking and Shopmobility Manager 
Service Area / Department Direct Services  
Tel:  01865 252125  e-mail:  abradfield-barnes@oxford.gov.uk 
 

List of background papers:  
CEB Report December 2010 
Scrutiny Report April 2011  
 
Version number: 5 

17



18

This page is intentionally left blank



SUMMARY OF RESPONSES IN RESPECT OF PARKING ORDER NOTICES 
 

NAME AREA ISSUE(s) RESPONSE 

Martin 
Audley 

Marsh Rec  • Feels we should not be giving staff free permits There is an operational 
need – agreed by 
CEB/Scrutiny as an 
alternative to just charging 
evenings and weekends as 
originally recommended 

Anita Jassi Walton Well 
Road 

• Allotment holder 

• Asking if they can have a reduced fee permit 

• Asking for maintenance of car park – signs etc  

Agreed with Cllr Cook that 
they would qualify for 
reduced fee.  Historical 
maintenance issues will 
need to be reviewed with 
Parks – but will probably 
now have to be paid by 
Direct Services as this area 
will be getting the revenue. 

Mr S Creed Cutteslowe • Regular user of the car park ( weekends with his son) 

• Admits that tariff is reasonable now but fearful it will increase 
over the next few years. 

• No direct bus route from home – so therefore needs to drive 
 

Offer standard permit of £50 
per annum as a regular user  

Rob Munro Marsh Rec • Lives in Marsh Road – pressures of parking generally 

• Feels that more people will try and park on street for free 

• Not happy about council staff getting permits 

Agreed that residents can 
apply for £50 regular 
permits 

Dr James 
Panton 

Alexandra Court • Lives in Grove Street 

• Lack of off street parking and uses Alex Courts to park – as 
do visitors 

Refer to County Council re 
onstreet issues and visitor 
parking permits. 

19



• Feels local residents are being penalised. 

• Wants more visitor permits – feels it is unreasonable that 
they are limited. 

 
Could buy £50 permit. 

Paul Dhesi Alexandra Court • Wishes to formalise existing practice with Parks for the NHS to 
park 6 cars each day.  Looks as if they were prepared to pay a 
reasonable sum each year. 

Refer the matter to Estates 
and Parks who were 
previously dealing with this. 

Jody Webb Marsh Rec • Local resident 

• Not happy to pay £2 a day 

• Asking about resident permits( but getting the impression she 
wants a free one!) 

She can purchase a £50 a 
year permit. 

David Quinn Cutteslowe and 
others 

• Rep for Wolvercote Cricket Club 

• Does not feel that the concessions help his club members 
as only 9-10 home fixtures per team and not everyone plays 
in each match 

• Asked for interchangeable permits – but we said no to this. 

• Feels that the club will have to pay the additional cost of 
parking to the umpires and away sides 

• Additional costs may be a disincentive to play 

• States that the club might encourage people to use resident 
parking areas 

The tariff is £1 for up to 3 
hours and £2 all day.  Very 
modest level of charging 
would be surprised if it put 
people off playing. 
 
Concerned if they actively 
encourage their members to 
park in resident areas – but 
little we can do about this. 
 
 

Sergei 
Gutnikov 

 • Feels there is no benefit to change status quo- car parks not 
overcrowded. 

• Small tariffs will barely cover set up and running costs 

• Higher tariff would deter usage 

Financial analysis indicates 
payback within 3 year – ( 
assuming estimates of 
usage were correct) 

Gill Smith  Hinksey Park  • Very regular user of the different facilities 

• Praise for Ian the park keeper 

• Gets “terrific value” from Hinksey and thinks the charges are 

As a slice card holder will 
get parking for £20 a year 

20



very fair. 
 

Peter Wing-
Young 

Alexandra Court • Chair of Norham Gardens Tennis Club 

• Has been asking for parking regs for some time 

• Welcomes the proposed order 

• Concerned that commuters might try and get a 
concessionary permit 

Terms and  conditions of 
permits will make it clear 
that they are not to be used 
for commuting and this will 
be monitored and permits 
withdrawn. 

David 
Feeney 

Walton Well 
Road 

• Allotment user 

• Uses it 4-5 times a week 

• Concerned that we will undo all the good work that resulted 
from  the timed ticket regime. 

• Concerned that more allotment holders will drive onto the 
allotments and the spaces will fill up with commuters 

Will be eligible for £20 per 
annum permit. 
Commuter parking will be 
monitored. 
 

Adrian Arbib Walton Well 
Road 

• Local resident – drives elderly dog to the area for a short 
walk 

• Feels that those who have a resident permit should be 
allowed to park free of charge. 

County Council charge for 
on street resident permits 
Regular users can purchase 
£50 permit for a years use. 

John Sivell Walton Well 
Road 

• Allotment user 

• Asking for free permit 

• Concerns re maintenance and signage as before  

Will be eligible for £20 
permit. 
Will look at maintenance 
and signage issues 

Mrs 
Gabrielle 
Topliss 

Walton Well 
Road 

• Allotment user 

• Feels tariff is wrong – makes commuter parking cheap – and 
relatively expensive for short term users 

Will be eligible for £20 
permit 

Nancy 
Browner 

Walton Well 
Road 

• Local resident 

• Feels that they should not be paying for an amenity on 
common land 

• Feels that she already pays £40 for residents permit and 

As a regular user would be 
eligible to apply for £50 
permit 

21



that this should be sufficient 

• Walks her dog 3 times a day and takes the elderly and 
young children so needs her car 

Jane Eagan Walton Well 
Road 

• Allotment holder 

• Asking if they can have a reduced fee permit 

• Asking for maintenance of car park – signs etc 
 

Will look at maintenance 
issues . 
Will be eligible for £20 
permit 

Wendy 
Skinner-

Smith 

Walton Well 
Road 

As above As above 

George 
Lowe 

Marsh Rec • Local resident – concerned about lack of parking 

• Asking if we will put in CCTV as his car has been broken 
into twice 

• Will there be residents parking scheme on street or offer 
concessionary fees in the car park. 

• Asking when charging will commence 

There is not the budget to 
put in CCTV. 
Residents parking scheme 
is responsibility of County 
Council 
Will be eligible for £50 
permit 
Charging was to  commence 
11th July 2011.  

Timothy 
Green 

 • Comments that all the areas are not within the auspices of 
the labour majority 

• Parks are provided to encourage sports and leisure an feels 
that charging will be counterproductive 

• States that dog walkers will go elsewhere – thereby no 
revenue from them 

• Has noted that the ticket machines have started to be 
installed before consultation ends -  

Tariffs are low – there are 
concessions for regular 
users 
Needed to get on with civil 
works so that charging can 
be implemented asap. 
Agree that with hindsight 
this gave the wrong 
impression. 

Marta Marsh Rec • Representative of Zubry Football Club Permits will be available by 

22



Mordarska • Feels charging is counterproductive to encouraging use of 
parks for health living and exercise. 

• Questioning if income will be sufficient to pay for set up and 
running costs 

• Asking if fees for pitches will decrease 

• Query how permits will work 

post/web. 

Herb Bowes Cutteslowe and 
Walton Well 

Road 

• 83 year gent who likes to walk his dog for over an hour a 
day.  Has calculated he will be spending £2 a day on 
parking – some £730 a year 

• Asking for a concession as a regular user 

Would qualify for a parking 
permit of £50 a year 

Christine 
Lowen 

Cutteslowe • Has been an Oxford resident for many years 

• Feels that by charging we are breaking the custom and 
practice of providing free facilities at the Park. 

• We are using the scheme to raise extra money because we 
are prevented from raising council tax 

• Concerns about displacement into resident areas 

• Feels that consultation is flawed as we have started work to 
install pay machines already 

• The decision to proceed will be liable and subject to a 
judicial review which she will apply for! 

 

Sarah Beck Alexandra Park  • Local resident concerned that she will not be able to 
continue using the area to park in without incurring high 
costs. 

• Claims that the car park is currently used by those who live 
or work in the area and is not used by tennis players or 
users of the park. 

• General comments about restrictions that the County 
Council put on for the number of permits and visitor permits 
– but confuses this with the City Council 

 

23



Alan 
Dobson 

Cutteslowe • Comments regarding machines going in before the 
consultation period has finished. 

• Questions the wording of the reasons for proposals – and 
suggests that it is not clear English. 

• Feels that there will be displacement into resident parking 
areas – which already is fairly congested at peak times. 

• Feels that because of displacement, income targets may not 
be achieved. 

 

Suzanne 
McIvor 

Cutteslowe • Has responded to previous consultation as Secretary of the 
Harbord Road Area Residents’ Association. 

• Still concerned that the proposed income estimates are 
based on estimated and not actual data – believes that they 
are overestimates and that the scheme will take longer to 
payback than anticipated. 

• Displacement into residential area will create a further 
nuisance for local residents given that the County Council 
are not prepared to introduce a Resident Parking Zone. 

• Concerned that there will be overnight parking – as a ticket 
will last for up to 24 hours. 

 

Pat Emmett Walton Well 
Road 

• Resident in Jericho 

• Feels residents who already pay for resident permits and 
also pay council tax should have free access to the park and 
parking. 

 

Patrick 
Keaney 

Marsh Rec • Volunteer helper for a football match.  

• Could need parking for more than 3 hours – at a cost of £2 a 
time 

Would be eligible for a £20 a 
year permit 

Graham 
Jones 

Cutteslowe Park • Chairman of Friends of Cutteslowe and Sunnymead Park 

• Acknowledges that some concessions have been put in 
place in response to his original comments in March. 

 

24



• Feels that the charges will still be detrimental to park users 
and local residents 

• Fears that unless signs reminding people to pay are big, 
many users will inadvertently end up with penalty notices – 
however would not be appropriate to ruin the look of the 
park with lots of signs 

• Querying civil works taking place during the consultation 
process 

Maurice 
Mendelson 

QC 

Walton Well 
Road 

• States that Port Meadow is one of the oldest commons in 
the country and that it not right to charge for access to it. 

• Current timed ticket system works well and no justification 
to change it to one where charging takes place. 

• Procedural objection – machines installed prior to 
consultation ending  

 
 
 
 
Existing machines upgraded 
, but still producing free 
vend tickets. 

Philippa 
Scoones 

Walton Well 
Road 

• Local resident and permit holder 

• Use the car park twice daily – either to walk dogs or go to 
allotment 

• Feels that consideration should be given to existing permit 
holders and those using allotments 

Would be eligible for £20 a 
year permit 

Adrian Arbib  • Not sure how the Council can justify charging resident permit 
holders to park in Walton Well Road 

• Thinks scheme is badly thought through and counter productive 

Regular users could apply 
for £50 permit 

Penny 
Faust 

 • Disagrees with charging for parking and access to areas – 
as paid for them already in taxes 

• May prevent use of the areas by elderly and the young who 
rely on transport to get to the areas 

• Barriers and pay machines beginning to be installed during 
consultation period 

 

25



Caroline 
Hayes 

 • Concerned that young families and elderly will not be able to 
afford parking charges 

• Negative impact on sport 

• Local residents will suffer as a result of displacement 
parking 

• Refers to a tax of “fresh air and excercise” to pay for 
previous general financial mismanagement 

 

Bede 
Gerrard 

 • Chair, Oxford Council of Faiths  

• Feels that the charging regime will put off the use of parks 
and that if this declines it may lead to the deterioration of 
mental and physical health and expose children to the 
dangers of the streets. 

 

Roger Parry  Cutteslowe • Representative of Summertown Stars  

• Generally happy with the proposals as they reflect the points 
previously raised with the original consultation . 

• Seeking clarification that each permit would be valid for 2 
registrations. 

Permits would cover up to 2 
registrations. 

    

    

 

26



27



28


	Agenda
	4 Confirmation of Article 4 Direction on Houses in Multiple Occupation
	5 Car Parks Adjacent to Parks - Charging, Permits and Control of Use
	SUMMARY OF RESPONSES (2)
	20110722153931424 (2)


